
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343434 Web:www.dartford.gov.uk 

 
 
 

STRATEGIC HOUSING 
BOARD 

 
Councillor D J Mote (Chairman) 

Councillor J A Kite, MBE (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Mrs A D Allen, MBE 
Councillor T A Maddison 

 
 

A meeting of the above Committee will be held on Zoom 

 
at 2.00pm on Wednesday 27 January 2021 

 
 Details of how to access the meeting on YouTube are contained in the meeting 

page, along with the agenda and papers. 
 

 
Strategic Director (Internal Services) 

Tuesday 19 January 2021 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 

 



 

 
STRATEGIC HOUSING BOARD 

AGENDA 
 

Wednesday 27 January 2021 
 
 

Viewing this meeting on YouTube 

This meeting may be viewed on YouTube by opening the following link: 
 
https://youtu.be/RQwjtwszaRk 

 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 To receive any declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms of any Grant(s) of Dispensation by the Audit Board or the 
Strategic Director (Internal Services). 
 

 

3. Confirmation of the minutes of the meeting of the Strategic 
Housing Board held on 14 October 2020 and Matters Arising 
(Pages 1 - 4) 

 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Strategic Housing Board 
held on 14 October 2020 as an accurate record.  
 

 

4. Urgent Items   

5. References from Other Committees   

 There are no references from other committees. 
 

 

6. Bellway Homes - Sales and Marketing in Dartford   

 Jamie MacArthur, Divisional Planning Manager, Bellway Homes, will 
attend the meeting to explain local Bellway sales and marketing 
initiatives designed to inform and encourage property purchases by 
existing Dartford residents. 
 

 

7. Dartford Strategic Housing Mosaic - Update (Pages 5 - 6)  

 To consider the latest version of the Dartford Strategic Housing 
Mosaic. 
 

 

8. Homelessness Update (Pages 7 - 10)  

 To consider the Council’s current position with homelessness 
arrangements. 
 

 

https://youtu.be/RQwjtwszaRk


 

9. Update on the development of a new Housing Strategy for 
Dartford (Pages 11 - 14) 

 

10. Council New Build Housing Programme Update (Pages 15 - 18)  

 To note the update on the Council’s New Build Housing Programme. 
 

 

11. Date of Next Meeting and Future Items   

 The next meeting is scheduled to take place at 2.00pm on 7 April 
2021. 
 

 

 



1 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

STRATEGIC HOUSING BOARD 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Strategic Housing Board held on Wednesday 14 
October 2020. 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor David J Mote (Chairman) 
Councillor Jeremy A Kite MBE (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Mrs Ann D Allen MBE 
Councillor Kelly Grehan (Substitute Member) 
 

 
ABSENT: 
 

Councillor Tom A Maddison 
 

 
 Dartford Borough Council Officers:- 

 Sheri Green – Strategic Director (External Services) 
 Peter Dosad – Head of Housing Services 
 Jackie Pye – Housing Policy and Development 

Manager 
 Alan Twyman – Democratic Services Manager 

 
 

28. CHANGE OF MEMBERSHIP AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
The Chairman informed the Board that, following the meeting of the General 
Assembly of the Council on Monday 12 October 2020, Councillor Maddison 
had replaced Councillor Grehan as a Board member. However Councillor 
Maddison was unable to attend the meeting and sent his apologies and 
Councillor Grehan was attending as his substitute.  
 
There were no further apologies. 
 

29. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

30. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
STRATEGIC HOUSING BOARD HELD ON 29 JANUARY 2020 AND 
MATTERS ARISING  
 
The Chairman noted that the last meeting had discussed its response to the 
Kent County Council (KCC) Select Committee call for evidence on Affordable 
Housing and asked whether there had been any feedback from KCC as to 
what action they had taken as a result of the responses they had received. 
The Vice-Chairman reported that KCC had held a meeting to consider how to 
take this forward but that they needed to focus on authorities that were not as 
proactive as Dartford in providing affordable housing. 
 
The Chairman also informed Members that the Dartford Housing Mosaic had 
been available for review at the last scheduled meeting of the Board in April 
but that that meeting had been cancelled due to the pandemic. He wondered 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



STRATEGIC HOUSING BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 14 OCTOBER 2020 
 
 

2 

whether this could be considered at the Board’s next meeting for sign off and 
also whether it should feature in the development of the proposed Housing 
Strategy to be discussed later in the meeting. The Head of Housing said that 
once the final content was agreed it was planned to make it available as an 
intuitive web site application to lead those seeking housing in the Borough 
through the various options but that it could easily sit within the Strategy. He 
was currently talking to IT about improving the design. The Chairman agreed 
that this was essential so that it could become an interactive module 
integrated within the existing Council web site. He suggested that the content 
should be brought back to the next meeting for agreement and work could 
then begin to link it into the web site.    
 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting of the Strategic Housing Board held on 29 
January 2020 be confirmed as an accurate record. 
 

31. URGENT ITEMS  
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

32. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES  
 
There were no references from other committees. 
 

33. NEW HOUSING STRATEGY FOR DARTFORD  
 
The Housing Policy and Development Manager informed Members that the 
last Housing Strategy had been agreed in 2009 when it had been a statutory 
requirement for authorities to have a strategy and the content had been 
prescribed. This requirement had been removed and given other priorities a 
new strategy had not been developed since that time. However it was felt that 
given the significant changes that had taken place in the housing sector, 
including the greater ability of authorities to build homes directly, concerns 
about housing affordability, the shortage of homes for social and private rent, 
welfare reform, landlord licensing, legislative change and pressures on the 
homelessness service, now would be a good time to produce a new housing 
strategy. The Board was asked to give its views on the merits of producing a 
new strategy. 
 
Councillor Grehan said that although Councillor Maddison was unable to 
attend the meeting he had asked her to convey his views on the need for a 
new Housing Strategy. He felt that there was a need to conduct an 
independent Housing Needs Survey, particularly in view of the changing 
demographics in the borough and possible lessons learned during the 
pandemic. He also cited the current Government proposals to increase the 
targets for housing nationally and the need for any strategy to include a 
mechanism for providing more affordable and council housing. 
 

Page 2Agenda Item 3



STRATEGIC HOUSING BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 14 OCTOBER 2020 
 
 

3 

The Vice-Chairman said that the Council already carried out a Housing Needs 
Survey as part of its planning processes. He noted the massive implications of 
the Government’s current Planning legislation which would not only affect the 
number of houses to be built but also their location. Any new Housing 
Strategy should be sufficiently flexible to accommodate these changes and 
would need to reflect the current demand and market for housing.  Members 
also stressed the need to work with local partners to deliver housing 
requirements. 
 
The Head of Housing confirmed that the Council reviewed housing need on a 
regular basis but that a new published strategy would provide information for 
partners and providers and also clearly set out the Council’s housing 
priorities. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
That the Head of Housing and his team should develop a framework for a new 
Housing Strategy for circulation to the Board and key partners and for this to 
be considered at the Board’s next meeting. 
 

34. COUNCIL NEW BUILD PROGRAMME UPDATE  
 
The Head of Housing updated the Strategic Housing Board on the success of 
the Council’s new build programme. Since 2012 the Council had built 86 new 
homes for people on the Council’s housing register and four new sites had 
been identified moving forward which would provide a further 30 homes. 
Planning permission had already been granted for sites in Milton Road, Keary 
Road and Mead Crescent and he was pleased to announce that permission 
for the proposed scheme in Gilbert Close had been granted by the 
Development Control Board on 8 October.  However he noted that 
opportunities were becoming fewer in terms of land owned by the Council and 
that these sites were becoming less viable. The Council would explore 
opportunities with Kent County Council (KCC) to work together but these had 
previously been impacted by KCC’s determination to achieve ‘best 
consideration’ for its landholdings. The Housing Team had also purchased a 
number of properties on the open market using 1-4-1 funds and was looking 
at the possibility of acquiring properties at auction that might be suitable for 
conversion or adaptation. Although there was currently a small underspend on 
the current 1-4-1 budget the Council was optimistic that it would not have to 
surrender this funding to the Government. It was also in discussion with the 
Government about flexibility in the scheduled housing stock loan repayment 
given the impact of the current pandemic on finances. 
 
The Vice-Chairman stressed the need to ensure that the Council did not have 
to surrender 1-4-1 receipts to the Government and noted that the requirement 
to spend receipts within a certain timeframe did not reflect the realities of the 
development industry which tended to ebb and flow. He welcomed the 
Council’s multi-faceted approach to providing quality Council housing whether 
by new build or by acquisition on the open market. He stressed the need to 
ensure that any properties purchased should deliver the same high quality as 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



STRATEGIC HOUSING BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 14 OCTOBER 2020 
 
 

4 

the Council’s new build homes and the need to ensure that robust governance 
arrangements were in place to ensure value for money and that valuations 
reflected market prices. 
 
The Strategic Housing Board strongly supported the steps taken by the 
Council to increase the Council’s housing stock both by building quality new 
housing and the acquisition of suitable properties on the open market. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted.        
  
 

35. DATE OF NEXT MEETING AND FUTURE ITEMS  
 
It was noted that the next meeting would be held at 2.00pm on Wednesday 27 
January 2021. 
 
It was suggested that it would be helpful to have an informed discussion of the 
mortgage and other financial products available in the local housing market, 
both through public and private lenders, possibly focussed on first-time-buyers 
and older people. This could be facilitated by an invited representative from a 
suitable industry body such as the Association of Mortgage Lenders.   
 
The following items would also be considered at the next meeting: 
 

 Framework for a New Housing Strategy for Dartford 

 Dartford Housing Mosaic 

 New Build Programme - Update 
 
 

 
The meeting closed at 2.35 pm 

 
  

 
 

Councillor D Mote 
CHAIRMAN 

 

Page 4Agenda Item 3



Homeless 

Applicant

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Contact Local Rental 

Agency

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

Vunerable Persons Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Contact Local Rental 

Agency

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Register with Estate Agent 

or New Homes Sales 

Office

Take Advice from 

Mortgage Adviser

Register with Estate Agent 

or New Homes Sales 

Office

Take Advice from 

Mortgage Adviser

Register with Estate 

Agent or New 

Homes Sales Office

Contact Local Rental 

Agency

Research Local Care 

Homes and Contact 

Financial Adviser

Contact Housing Officer Take Advice from 

Mortgage Adviser

Single Persons Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Contact Local Rental 

Agency

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Register with Estate Agent 

or New Homes Sales 

Office

Take Advice from 

Mortgage Adviser

Register with Estate Agent 

or New Homes Sales 

Office

Take Advice from 

Mortgage Adviser

Register with Estate 

Agent or New 

Homes Sales Office

Contact Local Rental 

Agency

Research Local Care 

Homes and Contact 

Financial Adviser

Contact Housing Officer Take Advice from 

Mortgage Adviser

Single Parent Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Contact Local Rental 

Agency

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Register with Estate Agent 

or New Homes Sales 

Office

Take Advice from 

Mortgage Adviser

Register with Estate Agent 

or New Homes Sales 

Office

Take Advice from 

Mortgage Adviser

Register with Estate 

Agent or New 

Homes Sales Office

Contact Local Rental 

Agency

Not Applicable Not Applicable Take Advice from 

Mortgage Adviser

Familes Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Contact Local Rental 

Agency

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Register with Estate Agent 

or New Homes Sales 

Office

Take Advice from 

Mortgage Adviser

Register with Estate Agent 

or New Homes Sales 

Office

Take Advice from 

Mortgage Adviser

Register with Estate 

Agent or New 

Homes Sales Office

Contact Local Rental 

Agency

Research Local Care 

Homes and Contact 

Financial Adviser

Contact Housing Officer Take Advice from 

Mortgage Adviser

Family with 

Specific Schooling 

Requirement

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Contact Local Rental 

Agency

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Register with Estate Agent 

or New Homes Sales 

Office

Take Advice from 

Mortgage Adviser

Register with Estate Agent 

or New Homes Sales 

Office

Take Advice from 

Mortgage Adviser

Register with Estate 

Agent or New 

Homes Sales Office

Contact Local Rental 

Agency

Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

Disabled Person/ 

Family

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Contact Local Rental 

Agency

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Register with Estate Agent 

or New Homes Sales 

Office

Take Advice from 

Mortgage Adviser

Register with Estate Agent 

or New Homes Sales 

Office

Take Advice from 

Mortgage Adviser

Register with Estate 

Agent or New 

Homes Sales Office

Contact Local Rental 

Agency

Research Local Care 

Homes and Contact 

Financial Adviser

Contact Housing Officer Take Advice from 

Mortgage Adviser

Ex Offender Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Contact Local Rental 

Agency

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Register with Estate Agent 

or New Homes Sales 

Office

Take Advice from Mortage 

Adviser

Register with Estate Agent 

or New Homes Sales 

Office

Take Advice from 

Mortgage Adviser

Register with Estate 

Agent or New 

Homes Sales Office

Contact Local Rental 

Agency

Research Local Care 

Homes and Contact 

Financial Adviser

Contact Housing Officer Take Advice from 

Mortgage Adviser

Qualifying Ex 

Service Personnel

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Contact Local Rental 

Agency

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Register with Estate Agent 

or New Homes Sales 

Office

Take Advice from Mortage 

Adviser

Register with Estate Agent 

or New Homes Sales 

Office

Take Advice from 

Mortgage Adviser

Register with Estate 

Agent or New 

Homes Sales Office

Contact Local Rental 

Agency

Research Local Care 

Homes and Contact 

Financial Adviser

Contact Housing Officer Take Advice from 

Mortgage Adviser

Gypsies and 

Travellers

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Contact Local Rental 

Agency

Contact Housing 

Solution Team for 

Advice

Register with Estate Agent 

or New Homes Sales 

Office

Take Advice from 

Mortgage Adviser

Register with Estate Agent 

or New Homes Sales 

Office

Take Advice from 

Mortgage Adviser

Register with Estate 

Agent or New 

Homes Sales Office

Contact Local Rental 

Agency

Research Local Care 

Homes and Contact 

Financial Adviser

Contact Housing Officer Take Advice from 

Mortgage Adviser

Homeless or 

Being Made 

Homeless with 

Dartford Links

Homeless or Being 

made Homeless 

without Dartford 

Links

Looking for Private 

Rental with Deposit

Given Notice to 

Vacate from Private 

Rental, Problems at 

Home and Advice for 

Under 25s

FTB with Mortgage 

Arrangements in Place

FTB without Mortgage 

Arrangements in Place

Upsizer with Mortgage 

Arrangements in Place

Upsizer without Mortgage 

Arrangements in Place

Downsizer with 

Property

Downsizer in Private  

Rental Property

Over 50 Downsizer 

with Property 

Looking to Move into 

a Retirement or Care 

Home

Over 50 Downsizer in 

Rental, Social Housing or 

Council Property Looking 

to Move into Sheltered 

Accommodation

Homeowner with 

Mortgage Payment 

Difficulties or Endowment 

Shortfall

Strategic Housing Board - Mosaic DRAFT (1)

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 6



 
Strategic Housing Board 

27 JANUARY 2021 
 

HOMELESSNESS UPDATE REPORT 
 

 
 

1. Summary   
This report sets out the Council’s current position with homelessness arrangements for 
the winter period.   
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
That the contents of the report be noted.  

 

 
3. Background  
 
3.1. Since 2012, a Severe Weather Emergency Protocol (SWEP) has been in place to 

protect rough sleepers from further harm and death during the coldest periods in 
winter. The Council works closely with partner organisations to get rough sleepers off 
the streets, regardless of eligibility and priority need. 

 
3.2. Over the last three years, the Council has activated the SWEP 9 times and assisted 

6 rough sleepers into emergency accommodation, of which 2 individuals went on to 
settle into longer term accommodation. 

 
3.3. SWEP is a local emergency response to a heightened risk. There is no legal 

requirement for local authorities to provide shelter during severe weather and there 
is no single definition of severe weather. The charity Homeless Link has published 
SWEP guidance to help local authorities and their partners develop suitable 
responses. 
 

3.4. Engagement with and from long term rough sleepers is always difficult as staying 
focussed on long term goals of housing can be challenging when an individual is often 
living with multiple and complex issues in their daily lives. 

 
3.5. The Covid-19 pandemic has been a devastating strain on the local community as well 

as globally but has given the homelessness sector a unique opportunity to work 
towards resolving a previously colossal task. 

 
3.6. As well as the SWEP, a project in Dartford managed by a co-operative of volunteers 

and coordinated by the Dartford Churches Winter Shelter (DCWS) group was 
established. DCWS provides a communal shared, but warm and safe space for up to 
12 individuals to be accommodated from January to March. This facility provides vital 
support & sleeping space for rough sleepers. 
 

4. Everyone In 
 
4.1. Dartford previously had low numbers of rough sleepers and people accommodated 

under SWEP. In March 2020, when the Covid-19 pandemic struck, out of justified 
fears that the street population would suffer huge life loss due to the virus, the 
Government initiated the “Everyone in” scheme to ensure people sleeping rough 
could stay safe during the national lockdown. On 26 March 2020, the Minister for 
Local Government and Homelessness instructed the Council to take a programme of 

Page 7 Agenda Item 8



 
Strategic Housing Board 

27 JANUARY 2021 
 

actions, which included convening a local coordination cell involving the local housing 
authority, social care, public health and local NHS partners. 

 
4.2. At the time, the DCWS was open and accommodating 12 people, made up mostly by 

East European males who had been working in and around Dartford for some years. 
The communal nature of the accommodation and the vast number of volunteers that 
were supporting the Everyone In scheme meant that DCWS was overwhelmed and 
had to shut down, as the operation could not be Covid 19 safe. All affected individuals 
were immediately placed into temporary emergency accommodation by the Council. 

 
4.3. Many of the ‘invisible individuals’, such as those sofa surfing with older family 

members, were also made homeless by the instruction to vulnerable households to 
shield. The Council accommodated 37 individuals under the ‘Everyone In’ scheme, 
including the DCWS cohort. At the time of writing this report, around half of these 
individuals have now been moved on or have made their own arrangements - 2 went 
back out onto the streets and subsequently moved in with friends, 7 of the Eastern 
European males have been intensively supported by Porchlight to resolve their 
‘settled status’ issues, as many had been working but not engaging. These 7 
individuals are now eligible and active members of the community with positive 
prospects of settled housing.  

 
4.4. Out of the original 37 individuals that the Council accommodated from March to June 

2020, there are 19 left in nightly paid accommodation. 
 
4.5. In 2020/21, Dartford received Rough Sleeper Initiative (RSI yr3) funding for the 

recruitment of an additional Housing Solutions (complex needs) Officer in the 
Housing Solutions team. This post has proved to be essential in supporting complex 
ex rough sleepers to be in a positon to move on from temporary accommodation. 
 

4.6. On 8th January 2021 the Secretary of State Housing, Communities and local 
Government wrote to all Local Authorities asking them to ‘redouble’ on their efforts to 
accommodate all rough sleepers due to the new variant of Covid-19 that is driving 
infection rates higher. The focus is on keeping rough sleepers safe and protecting the 
NHS. The Council is already focussed on getting any new rough sleepers off the 
streets and keeping everyone in accommodation it has already provided. The focus 
moving forward is to keep everyone safe, registered with GPs and get them moved 
into longer term accommodation. 
 

5. Next Steps Accommodation Programme 
 
5.1. In June 2020, £105m worth of government funding was announced to support the 

Next Steps Accommodation Programme for the rough sleepers accommodated due 
to the pandemic. From this funding stream, Dartford was granted £171,355 to help 
the “Everyone In” cohort into medium and longer term accommodation. It also 
included funding for accommodation arrangements for the winter. The bid includes 
assistance with costs for temporary accommodation, Porchlight to support the rough 
sleepers and to help the DCWS fund a support worker from November 2020 to March 
2021. 

 
5.2. When the funding was confirmed, the Council immediately mobilised the provision of 

a 7-bed unit for winter provision via one of the local accommodation providers. The 
focus of this accommodation is that it is Covid safe, using funds received, and 

Page 8Agenda Item 8



 
Strategic Housing Board 

27 JANUARY 2021 
 

residents are supported by DCWS project and Porchlight support workers. The winter 
provision was up and running by 30 November 2020 and will provide accommodation 
in its current format until 31st March 2021. It is located centrally at in Dartford making 
it easy for clients to access services and (where safe) for officers and partners to 
access them. 

 
5.3. After 1 April 2021, the Council is looking to take over direct management of the 7-bed 

unit into the Private Sector Leasing Scheme, where it will be used for medium term 
accommodation in order to move on the “Everyone In” cohort. 

 
5.4. The focus of the winter accommodation is to get residents assessed very quickly and 

identify those that can move on into private rented sector or hostel accommodation, 
in order to keep the turnover of rooms available.  Funding is available to help with 
move on and the settling of people into their new homes. We are also focussed on 
making sure all individuals are registered with GPs, their health needs are addressed 
and ensure they are included in local area vaccination plans. 

 
5.5. The winter provision is for males only. It is recognised that female rough sleepers 

have a very specific vulnerability, often compounded by a legacy of abuse in their 
lives. If any lone female rough sleepers need to be accommodated by the Council 
over the winter months, extra self-contained accommodation provision will be made 
available for them and the same support is provided. 

 
5.6. The result of the winter provision provided so far this year has meant that whilst 

SWEP has been activated due to the extreme weather in recent weeks, only one 
couple was identified as rough sleeping and taken into additional accommodation.  

 
5.7. In terms of monitoring the situation, Council officers, Porchlight and the DCWS meet 

virtually as a Rough Sleeper Team on a daily basis and make sure that all reported 
rough sleepers are verified by the team. It is taken in turns to complete outreach to 
identify any possible rough sleepers in Dartford. 

 
5.8. The Council has also received up to an additional £50k from Government, to 

implement the Cold Weather Provisions. These funds are to help any additional 
expenditure caused by cold weather and the additional pressure to keep all 
individuals off the streets. These funds can be retrospectively claimed back from 
central Government by April 2021. 
 

6. Moving Forward 
 
6.1. The Government has now made a commitment that any funding received for Rough 

Sleeper Initiatives (RSI yr3) in 2020/21 will have that funding extended into April to 
June 2021. This will enable the Council to continue to fund an additional Complex 
Needs Officer in the Housing Solutions team and put together a further case for 
extending this into 2021/22 and the RSI Year 4 funding. 

 
6.2. The Housing Solutions team continues to work remotely and whilst there is now a 

specialist complex needs worker in place for the single homeless households, the 
team remain fully functioning in terms of supporting all other homeless applicants’ 
needs. 

 

Page 9 Agenda Item 8



 
Strategic Housing Board 

27 JANUARY 2021 
 

6.3. With further announcements that court evictions continue to be suspended (except 
for exceptional cases such as anti-social behaviour and high level rent arrears) this 
allows time to continue working with households at risk of homelessness to help and 
support them into a better financial position and support to reduce debt. We continue 
to facilitate a (now virtual) multi agency housing hub so that we identify which 
agencies are best placed to help vulnerable households in this very difficult time. 

 
6.4. The Council’s Landlord Relationship Officer post also continues to be critical to 

ensuring that a constant flow of private sector housing remains available to help  
applicants move on into alternative housing. 

 

7. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
This report relates to the Corporate Plan strategic aim ‘to facilitate quality, choice and 
diversity in the housing market, to create strong and self-reliant communities and 
deliver high quality services to service users’. 

 

8. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk assessments 
 

Financial Implications As set out in this report 

Legal Implications None specifically from this report 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None  

Risk Assessment None specifically from this report 

 

9. Details of Exempt Information Category  
Not applicable 

  

10. Appendices  
None 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author Section 
and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 
 

  Peter Dosad 
 

Housing 
Strategic 
Directorate 
(External 
Services) 

N/A 

 

Page 10Agenda Item 8



STRATEGIC HOUSING BOARD 
27 JANUARY 2021 

 
UPDATE ON THE DEVELOPMENT OF A NEW HOUSING STRATEGY FOR DARTFORD 

 

 
1. Summary. 

1.1. This report provides an update on the development of a new Housing Strategy for 

Dartford. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That the Board considers the ‘Contents’ for the proposed Housing Strategy, at 
Appendix A to the report and comments accordingly. 

 
2.2 That for the reasons outlined in the body of the report, the consideration of the full 

Housing Strategy document be deferred, until further information is available.  
 

 
3. Background and Discussion 

 

3.1. The Board considered the development of a new Housing Strategy for Dartford on 

14 October 2020.  It was agreed that the Head of Housing and his team should 

develop a framework for a new Housing Strategy for circulation to the Board and 

key partners and for this to be considered at the Board’s next meeting (Minute No. 

32 refers). 

 

3.2. After consideration, and in consultation with the Chairman, it is proposed that the 

full Housing Strategy document be deferred to allow the inclusion of relevant 

information from the Council’s Local Plan document; once it has been agreed by 

the Planning Inspectorate. This proposal is to ensure that the Strategy can be 

aligned with the Council’s agreed planning policy. It is expected that the Local Plan 

will be submitted to the Planning Inspectorate in May 2021, with a decision 

expected to be made in 2022. 

 

3.3. In addition to the above, it is felt that it would be beneficial if data from the 2021 

Census is included in the document’s background information to support the 

proposed Housing Strategy.  Local authority published data is expected from March 

2022. 

 

3.4. The development of a Housing Strategy is not a statutory requirement so a delay 

in its development will not create issues or be of detriment to current housing 

service activities or the Council.  Major legislative changes to the housing 

landscape are currently evaluated and introduced as and when they arise and are 

managed within specific policy documents. 

 

3.5. The Board is asked to consider the ‘Contents’ document for the proposed Housing 

Strategy, at Appendix A to the report and for the reasons outlined above, defer the 

consideration of the full Housing Strategy document, until further information is 

available.  

 

Page 11 Agenda Item 9



STRATEGIC HOUSING BOARD 
27 JANUARY 2021 

 
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 

4.1 To support the Council’s overall vision to make Dartford ‘the place of quality and 
choice, a place where people choose to live, work and enjoy their leisure time. 
 

4.2 To support the strategic aim to facilitate quality, choice and diversity in the housing 
market, assist in meeting housing need in Dartford and deliver high quality services 
to service users; and to create strong and self-reliant communities.  
 

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other implications and risk assessments 
 

Financial Implications None 

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None specifically at this stage 

Risk Assessment N/A 

  
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 

 
Not applicable.   
 

7. Appendices 

Appendix A - Proposed ‘Content’ for the Housing Strategy  
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author Section 
and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 
 

  Jackie Pye 
(01322) 343683 

Housing/ 
External 
Services 

N/A 

 

Page 12Agenda Item 9



APPENDIX A – Proposed content for the Housing Strategy Document 

 

Executive Summary 

Introduction 

1. Background – aims and objectives 

2. Government policy and guidance 

3. Definitions 

4. Geography 

5. Research methodology 

6. Presentation of data 

7. Report structure 

Policy and strategic review 

1. National Context 

2. Strategic context 

3. Local context 

4. Concluding comments 

Understanding housing dynamics 

1. House price trends 

2. Relative affordability 

3. Household migration 

4. Travel to work needs 

5. Past trends in housing delivery 

6. A qualitative perspective 

7. Concluding comments 

Housing stock review 

1. Estimates of current dwellings in terms of size, condition, tenure 

2. Property condition 

3. Property tenure 

4. Owner-occupier sector 

5. Private rented sector 

6. Affordable sector 

7. Relative affordability of housing tenure options 

8. Concluding comments 

Future housing need 

1. Introduction 

2. Standard methodology for establishing a minimum housing need 

Page 13 Agenda Item 9



3. Establishing housing need using the standard methodology 

4. Conclusion on housing need 

Affordable housing need 

1. Introduction 

2. Affordable Housing Needs Assessment 

3. Tenure split 

4. Summary 

The needs of different groups 

1. Introduction 

2. The private rented sector 

3. Self-build and custom build  

4. Family housing/households with children 

5. Housing for older people 

6. Housing for ex-offenders 

7. Housing for victims of domestic abuse 

8. Future need for specialist older person accommodation and residential 

institutions 

9. Housing for people with disabilities and additional needs 

10. Benefit claimants – disability living allowance (DLA) by disabling condition 

11. People with disabilities and health needs 

12. Other people with support needs 

13. Other stakeholder views on specialist housing in Dartford 

14. Summary of need of accommodation for people with additional needs 

15. Recommendations for optional accessibility and wheelchair standard housing 

16. Summary 

Dwelling type and mix 

1. Introduction 

2. Demographic baseline scenario 

3. Aspiration scenario 

4. Accept scenario 

5. Summary scenario 

6. Overall dwelling mix by tenure 

7. Conclusions 

Conclusion: policy and strategic issues 

1. The Borough context 

2. Future housing need and drivers for change 

3. Dwelling type and mix 

4. Meeting the needs of older people and those with disabilities 

5. Final Comments 

Page 14Agenda Item 9



STRATEGIC HOUSING BOARD 
27 JANUARY 2021 

 
COUNCIL NEW BUILD HOUSING PROGRAMME UPDATE 

 
1. Summary 

1.1. This report provides an update on the Council’s new build housing programme. 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 

2.1. That the Strategic Housing Board notes the contents of the report.  

 
3. Background and Discussion 

 

3.1. On 25 October 2012, The Council entered into an agreement with the Secretary of 

State under the terms of which capital receipts from the sale of Council homes 

were to be retained locally to be invested in the provision of new affordable 

housing.  Since then, the Council has developed three council owned sites in 

Temple Hill, providing 86 new homes for local people on the Council’s housing 

register.  All homes are fully occupied.  

 

3.2. Ongoing Projects 

 

3.3. As part of an ongoing process, four potential new build sites were identified to take 

forward to phase 3, totalling 32 units.  These are detailed below: 
 

 Gilbert Close Garage site – 16 units 

 Milton Road Garage site – 7 units 

 Keary Road former Garage site – 6 units 

 Mead Crescent former depot – 3 wheelchair accessible units 

 

3.4. Following consultation events held in 2019, and some amendments to the original 

plans, following resident feedback, planning permission has now been granted for 

all the above sites. 

   

3.5. Works have now started at Milton Road, Keary Road and Mead Crescent.  Enabling 

works have been ongoing at Gilbert Close, however there are still some outstanding 

issues to work through before building works can commence.  These include the 

progression of a ‘Stopping Up’ Order and further archaeological queries raised by 

KCC.  In addition, consultation with residents is ongoing regarding a redesign of 

gardens in numbers 7-12.  The bulk of the works will commence in the spring. 

 

3.6. The estimated completion dates for all projects are: 
 

 Mead Crescent - March 2021 

 Keary Road – August 2021 

 Milton Road – August 2021 

 Gilbert Close – August 2022 

 

Page 15 Agenda Item 10



STRATEGIC HOUSING BOARD 
27 JANUARY 2021 

 
3.7. As previously reported, the housing team has also purchased a number of properties 

on the open market, and continues to seek opportunities to do this.  This scheme has 

been very successful and has helped to reduce any underspend that may have 

occurred from retained Right to Buy receipts and therefore no money has had to be 

repaid to Government with interest.  The Government also recently confirmed that any 

unspent monies can be carried forward until March 2021.  The Council does not have 

a forecasted underspend until 2022. 

 

3.8. Since July 2020, the Council has purchased an additional 14 homes on the open 

market, including an auction property, with 8 more expected to complete this month or 

in February.  Once the properties are brought up to a lettable standard, they are 

advertised on Kent Homechoice and let to local people on the Council’s housing 

register, or allocated directly. 

 

3.9. Looking ahead, the housing team is currently assessing other potential purchase and 

conversion opportunities and these will be identified and feasibility studies undertaken, 

as required, and presented to the Strategic Housing Board, for approval, in due course.  

 
4. Financial Considerations 
 
4.1. The Council currently holds total retained receipts of £6.35m under the 1-4-1 receipts 

scheme, which projecting forwards would require an estimated spend of £21.16m by 

31/12/2023. This includes the full 2020/21 spend required of £5.34m which the Council 

is on target to exceed.  

 

4.2. The 2021/2022 to 2023/24 Capital Programme includes £15.83m for new build 

housing. An ongoing new build housing programme is factored into the Housing 

Revenue Account Business Plan. 

 
4.3. To date, as a participant in the 1-4-1 scheme, the Council has successfully spent 

£13.9m delivering 86 new homes for local people and a further £3.168m on the 

purchase of 14 market properties since July 2020.   A further 8 properties are currently 

in conveyance, totalling approximately £2m. 

 

4.4. The 86 new homes delivered comprised of 12 x 3 bedroom houses, 23 x 2 bedroom 

houses, 16 x 2 bedroom flats and 35 x 1 bedroom flats.   Market properties purchased 

and in conveyance comprise of 5 x 3 bedroom houses, 9 x 2 bedroom houses, 5 x 2 

bedroom flats and 3 x 1 bedroom flats. 

 
4.5. Under the conditions of the 1-4-1 scheme there has always been a risk that the Council 

would be unable to spend sufficient 1-4-1 receipts before the end of the rolling 3 year 

period. To mitigate this risk, the new build housing programme has been planned and 

kept under review to minimise the risk of under achievement.  

 
 
 
 

Page 16Agenda Item 10



STRATEGIC HOUSING BOARD 
27 JANUARY 2021 

 
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 

 

4.6. To support the Council’s overall vision to make Dartford ‘the place of quality and 

choice, a place where people choose to live, work and enjoy their leisure time. 

 

4.7. To support the strategic aim to facilitate quality, choice and diversity in the housing 

market, assist in meeting housing need in Dartford and deliver high quality services to 

service users; and to create strong and self-reliant communities.  

 
 

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other implications and risk assessments 
 

Financial Implications As detailed in the body of the report. 

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None specifically at this stage 

Risk Assessment N/A 

  
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 

 
Not applicable.   
 

7. Appendices 

None 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author Section 
and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 
 

  Peter Dosad 
(01322) 343327 

Housing/ 
External 
Services 

N/A 

 

Page 17 Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of the minutes of the meeting of the Strategic Housing Board held on 14 October 2020 and Matters Arising
	Minutes

	7 Dartford Strategic Housing Mosaic - Update
	8 Homelessness Update
	9 Update on the development of a new Housing Strategy for Dartford
	Appendix A Update on Housing Strategy - Proposed Content

	10 Council New Build Housing Programme Update

